Public Document Pack

Please ask for Charlotte Kearsey
Direct Line: 01246 345236
Email: committee.services@chesterfield.gov.uk
The Chair and Members of
Employment and General Committee
20 January 2021
Dear Councillor,
Please attend a meeting of the EMPLOYMENT AND GENERAL
COMMITTEE to be held on THURSDAY, 28 JANUARY 2021 at 10.00 am, the
agenda for which is set out below.
This meeting will be held virtually via Microsoft Teams software, for which
members of the Committee and others in attendance will receive an invitation.
Members of the public will be able to access Part 1 (Public Information) of the
meeting online by following the link here.
AGENDA
Part 1(Public Information)
1.

Declarations of Members' and Officers' Interests relating to Items on the
Agenda

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Minutes (Pages 3 - 4)

4.

Calculation of Tax Base 'Collection Fund' 2021/22 (Pages 5 - 14)

5.

Non Domestic Rates Estimates 2021/22 (Pages 15 - 22)

6.

Minutes of the Council Health and Safety Committee (Pages 23 - 34)

7.

Minutes of the Employer / Trade Union Committee (Pages 35 - 54)

Yours sincerely,

Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager and Monitoring Officer

Agenda Item 3
E & G 07.09.20

1

EMPLOYMENT AND GENERAL COMMITTEE
Monday, 7th September, 2020
Present:Councillor T Murphy (Chair)
Councillors Simmons
Blank

Councillors

Davenport
K Falconer

*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme
32

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' AND OFFICERS' INTERESTS
RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
No declarations of interest were received.

33

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Brittain.

34

MINUTES
RESOLVED –
That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on 16 March, 2020
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

35

CHRISTMAS/NEW YEAR DISCRETIONARY DAY 2020/21
The HR and Support Services Manager submitted a report seeking
approval for the chosen Christmas and New Year 2020/21 discretionary
day.
At Council Minute No.577 (2001/2002) it was resolved that the
discretionary day for Christmas and New Year would be decided each
January for that year. At the January 2004 Council Joint Consultative
Committee it was resolved that the Christmas and New Year discretionary
day would be decided at the preceding years October Council Joint
Consultative Committee. Following the decision to disband the Council

Page 3

E & G 07.09.20

2

Joint Consultative Committee in 2016 this decision would be made by the
Employment and General Committee.
The three options for the discretionary day were outlined as: Thursday 24 December, 2020;
 Tuesday 29 December, 2020;
 Thursday 31 December, 2020.
A staff poll had been conducted on the council intranet and over 55% of
respondents expressed a preference for Thursday 24 December, 2020.
*RESOLVED –
That, subject to the approval of the Employer / Trade Union Committee on
14 September, 2020, the Christmas and New Year 2020/21 discretionary
day be approved as 24 December, 2020 for all staff.
36

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE
The Minutes of the meeting of the Council Health and Safety Committee
held on 12 February and 16 June, 2020 were submitted.
RESOLVED –
That the Minutes be received and noted.

37

MINUTES OF THE EMPLOYER / TRADE UNION COMMITTEE
The Minutes of the Employer/Trade Union Committee held on 10
February, 9 March, 15 June, 13 July and 10 August 2020 were
considered.
RESOLVED –
That the Minutes be received and noted.

Page 4

Agenda Item 4
For publication
Calculation of Tax Base 2021/22
Meeting:

Employment & General

Date:

28th January 2021

Cabinet
portfolio:

Leader

Directorate:

Finance

1.0

Purpose of the report

1.1

To approve the Tax Base calculation for 2021/22.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

That the report for the calculation of the Council's Tax Base for the
whole and parts of the area for 2021/22 be approved.

2.2

That pursuant to the report and in accordance with Local Authorities
(Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 1992 (as amended), the amount
calculated by Chesterfield Borough Council as its Tax Base for the year
2021/22 shall be:
Table – 2021/22 TAX BASE (Equivalent Number of Band ‘D’ Dwellings)
2020/21

2021/22

Increase
(Decrease)
No.

Chesterfield
area)

3.0

(whole

/

%

29,181.08

29,268.96

87.88

0.3

Staveley Town Council

4,215.27

4,243.38

28.11

0.7

Brimington
Council

2,322.81

2,408.75

85.94

3.7

Parish

Reasons for recommendations

Page 5

3.1

To fulfil a statutory requirement and to enable the Council Tax to be
set later in the financial year.

4.0

Report details

4.1

Background
The Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 1992 (as
amended) require the Borough Council as Billing authority to calculate
the Tax Base for the Borough and the Parishes and to notify the Major
Precepting Authorities (Derbyshire County Council and Derbyshire
Police Authority), and those Parishes which request it, by 31st January
each year.
Section 84 of the Local Government Act 2003 amended the tax setting
regulations so that the tax base calculation no longer has to be
approved by the full council. The calculation of the tax base is a
procedural matter which, should be delegated to a non-executive
committee. The Council agreed (17th December 2003) to delegate the
function to the Employment and General Committee.
The tax base represents the estimated full year equivalent number of
chargeable dwellings in an area, expressed as the equivalent number
of Band D dwellings. Or more simply, it is an estimate of how much
income a Council Tax of £1 would raise.

4.2

Calculation of the Tax Base
The regulations mentioned at paragraph 4.1 prescribe the method of
calculating the Tax Base and the statements at Appendices A, B, C and
D show the Council's Tax Base calculation for the Whole Area,
Chesterfield’s non-parished areas, Staveley Town Council and
Brimington Parish Council respectively.
The estimated collection rate was reduced in 2013/14 to 98.1% to
reflect the increased difficulty of collecting small amounts from people
affected by the changes to the council tax scheme. A review of
collection rates has shown that this difficulty has decreased over time
and it is now considered appropriate to work on the basis of a
collection rate of 98.25%.

Page 6

The overall Tax Base for 2021/22 at 29,268.96 (Appendix A) shows an
increase of 87.88 or 0.3% on the 2020/21 Tax Base of 29,181.08.
The Tax Base for each of the parished areas is as follows:
 Staveley 4,243.38 – an increase of 28.11 or 0.7% on last year’s
tax base of 4,215.27 (Appendix C); &
 Brimington 2,408.75 – an increase of 85.94 or 3.7% on last
year’s tax base of 2,322.81 (Appendix D).

5.0

Alternative options

5.1

There are no alternative options.

6.0

Implications for consideration – Council Plan

6.1

There are no Council Plan implications to consider in this report.

7.0

Implications for consideration – Financial and value for money

7.1

Financial and value for money considerations are detailed in section 4.

8.0

Implications for consideration – Legal

8.1

The tax base must be set between the 1st December and 31st January.

9.0

Implications for consideration – Human resources

9.1

There are no human resource implications to consider in this report.

10.0

Implications for consideration – Risk management

10.1

11.0

There are a number of significant risks inherent in any budget
forecasting exercise. The most significant budget risk currently is the
impact of Covid19 and the council’s ability to collect Council Tax.
Implications for consideration – community wellbeing

Page 7

11.1

There are no community wellbeing implications to consider in this
report.

12.0

Implications for consideration – Economy and skills

12.1

There are no economy and skills implications to consider in this report.

13.0

Implications for consideration – Climate Change

13.1

Individual climate change impact assessments are not required for the
budget process. These are included as part of the decision-making
processes for specific spending options.

14.0

Implications for consideration – Equality and diversity

14.1

Individual equality and diversity impact assessments are not required
for the budget process. These are included as part of the decisionmaking processes for specific spending options.

Decision information
Non Key decision
number
Wards affected

188
All

Document information
Report author
Helen Fox
Chief Finance Officer
Background documents
These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material extent
when the report was prepared.
This must be made available to the public for up to 4 years.
Appendices to the report
Appendix A
2021/22 Council Tax Base – Whole Area
Appendix B
2021/22 Council Tax Base – Chesterfield
Appendix C
2021/22 Council Tax Base – Staveley Town Council

Page 8

Appendix D

2021/22 Council Tax Base – Brimington Parish
Council

Page 9

Page 10

2021/2022 COUNCIL TAX BASE - WHOLE AREA
Appendix A

BAND

A
(Disabled)

Number of Dwellings
Less Exempt/Demolished(classes B & D to
W))

Page 11

Less Council Tax Reduction scheme

12.86

Less Revised Exempt Class A & C
discount (on 100% discount)
Less Disregards at 50% (including 50% for
work related dwellings)
Less Single Person and Disregard
Discounts at 25%

5.25

Plus Empty Homes Surcharge (50%
addition)
Adjustment for Disabled Relief
Adjustments for New Properties and
anticipated changes in reliefs

61.00

Total for Band

42.89

Multiplier

5/9

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

TOTAL

26,735.00

10,306.00

6,225.00

3,848.00

1,956.00

556.00

223.00

22.00

49,871.00

403.00

143.00

81.00

40.00

20.00

3.00

2.00

0.00

692.00

5,785.30

818.88

249.58

81.29

25.11

5.74

0.00

0.00

6,978.76

291.00

54.00

35.00

17.00

7.00

1.00

3.00

0.00

408.00

10.50

6.50

5.00

4.50

2.50

7.00

6.50

2.00

44.50

3,238.50

906.50

466.50

207.25

84.50

24.75

8.00

0.00

4,941.25

52.00

14.00

5.00

1.00

1.00

0.50

1.00

0.00

74.50

-9.00

-5.00

-31.00

-2.00

-7.00

11.00

-8.00

-10.00

0.00

54.30

71.17

64.00

58.14

48.64

16.79

0.00

1.73

314.77

17,104.00

8,457.29

5,425.92

3,555.10

1,859.53

542.80

196.50

11.73

37,195.76

6/9

7/9

8/9

9/9

11/9

13/9

15/9

18/9

-

Band D Equivalent

23.83

11,402.67

6,577.89

4,823.04

3,555.10

2,272.76

784.04

327.50

23.46

29,790.29

Tax Base 2021/22 (on the basis of a
98.25% Collection Rate)

23.41

11,203.12

6,462.78

4,738.64

3,492.89

2,232.99

770.32

321.77

23.05

29,268.96

2021/2022 COUNCIL TAX BASE - CHESTERFIELD
Appendix B

BAND

A
(Disabled)

Number of Dwellings
Less Exempt/Demolished(classes B & D to
W))
Less Council Tax Reduction scheme

8.00

Less Revised Exempt Class A & C
discount (on 100% discount)
Less Disregards at 50% (including 50% for
work related dwellings)

Page 12

Less Single Person and Disregard
Discounts at 25%

4.25

Plus Empty Homes Surcharge (50%
addition)
Adjustment for Disabled Relief
Adjustments for New Properties and
anticipated changes in reliefs

38.00

Total for Band

25.75

Multiplier

5/9

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

TOTAL

18,518.00

8,441.00

4,925.00

3,249.00

1,808.00

529.00

206.00

15.00

37,691.00

300.00

119.00

62.00

38.00

18.00

3.00

2.00

0.00

542.00

4,057.35

690.23

177.78

68.89

22.94

4.37

0.00

0.00

5,029.56

203.00

46.00

31.00

14.00

7.00

1.00

3.00

0.00

305.00

6.50

4.00

4.50

2.00

0.50

4.50

3.00

2.00

27.00

2,387.25

754.75

376.25

182.00

79.25

23.50

7.75

0.00

3,815.00

35.00

11.50

4.00

0.50

0.00

0.50

1.00

0.00

52.50

7.00

-18.00

-15.00

0.00

-7.00

8.00

-8.00

-5.00

0.00

39.90

34.50

21.50

18.90

23.60

10.80

0.00

1.73

150.93

11,645.80

6,855.02

4,283.97

2,963.51

1,696.91

511.93

183.25

9.73

28,175.87

6/9

7/9

8/9

9/9

11/9

13/9

15/9

18/9

-

Band D Equivalent

14.31

7,763.87

5,331.68

3,807.98

2,963.51

2,074.01

739.45

305.41

19.46

23,019.67

Tax Base 2021/22 (on the basis of a
98.25% Collection Rate)

14.05

7,628.00

5,238.38

3,741.34

2,911.66

2,037.72

726.51

300.08

19.12

22,616.83

2021/2022 COUNCIL TAX BASE - STAVELEY TOWN COUNCIL
Appendix C

BAND

A
(Disabled)

Number of Dwellings

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

TOTAL

5,701.00

1,088.00

790.00

344.00

81.00

23.00

11.00

4.00

8,042.00

59.00

15.00

13.00

1.00

2.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

90.00

1,279.62

72.40

48.36

5.50

2.16

1.37

0.00

0.00

1,413.87

Less Revised Exempt Class A & C discount
(on 100% discount)

67.00

3.00

1.00

2.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

73.00

Less Disregards at 50% (including 50% for
work related dwellings)

3.00

1.50

0.00

0.50

1.00

0.50

1.00

0.00

7.50

570.25

87.00

52.25

11.50

3.75

0.75

0.25

0.00

726.50

13.00

1.00

0.50

0.50

1.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

16.00

-14.00

7.00

-8.00

0.00

0.00

-1.00

1.00

-2.00

0.00

11.70

8.99

26.60

16.90

2.17

2.39

0.00

0.00

68.75

3,732.83

926.09

694.49

340.90

75.26

21.77

10.75

2.00

5,815.88

7/9

8/9

9/9

Less Exempt/Demolished(classes B & D to
W))

Page 13

Less Council Tax Reduction scheme

Less Single person and Disregard
Discounts at 25%

4.46

0.75

Plus Empty Homes Surcharge (50%
addition)
Adjustment for Disabled Relief
Adjustments for New Properties and
anticipated changes in reliefs

17.00

Total for Band

11.79

Multiplier

5/9

6/9

11/9

13/9

15/9

18/9

-

Band D Equivalent

6.55

2,488.55

720.29

617.32

340.90

91.98

31.45

17.92

4.00

4,318.97

Tax Base 2021/22 (on the basis of a
98.25% Collection Rate)

6.44

2,445.00

707.69

606.52

334.93

90.37

30.90

17.60

3.93

4,243.38

2021/2022 COUNCIL TAX BASE - BRIMINGTON PARISH COUNCIL
Appendix D

BAND

A
(Disabled)

Number of Dwellings
Less Exempt/Demolished(classes B & D to
W))
Less Council Tax Reduction Scheme

0.40

Less Revised Exempt Class A & C
discount (on 100% discount)
Less Disregards at 50% (including 50% for
work related dwellings)

Page 14

Less Single person and Disregard
Discounts at 25%

0.25

Plus Empty Homes Surcharge (50%
addition)
Adjustment for Disabled Relief
Adjustments for New Properties and
anticipated changes in reliefs

6.00

Total for Band

5.35

Multiplier

5/9

A

B

C

D

2,516.00

777.00

510.00

255.00

67.00

4.00

6.00

3.00

4,138.00

44.00

9.00

6.00

1.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

60.00

448.33

56.25

23.44

6.90

0.01

0.00

0.00

0.00

535.33

21.00

5.00

3.00

1.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

30.00

1.00

1.00

0.50

2.00

1.00

2.00

2.50

0.00

10.00

281.00

64.75

38.00

13.75

1.50

0.50

0.00

0.00

399.75

4.00

1.50

0.50

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

6.00

-2.00

6.00

-8.00

-2.00

0.00

4.00

-1.00

-3.00

0.00

2.70

27.68

15.90

22.34

22.87

3.60

0.00

0.00

95.09

1,725.37

676.18

447.46

250.69

87.36

9.10

2.50

0.00

3,204.01

7/9

8/9

9/9

6/9

E

F

11/9

G

13/9

H

15/9

TOTAL

18/9

-

Band D Equivalent

2.97

1,150.25

525.92

397.74

250.69

106.77

13.14

4.17

0.00

2,451.65

Tax Base 2021/22 (on the basis of a
98.25% Collection Rate)

2.92

1,130.12

516.71

390.78

246.30

104.90

12.91

4.09

0.00

2,408.75

Agenda Item 5
For Publication
Non-Domestic Rates Estimates for 2021/22
Meeting:

Employment and General Committee

Date:

28 January 2021

Cabinet
portfolio:

Deputy Leader

Directorate:

Finance

1.0

Purpose of the Report

1.1

To approve the National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) estimates and
NNDR1 Return for 2021/22.

2.0

Recommendations

2.1

That the estimated National Non-Domestic Rates estimates as recorded on
the NNDR1 Return (Appendix A) be approved.

2.2

That delegated authority be given to the Acting Chief Finance Officer to
make any subsequent changes to the NNDR1 return that are identified
before the final submission date of the 31st January 2021.

3.0

Reasons for Recommendations

3.1

To fulfil the statutory requirements to approve the estimated Business
Rates income. The information is required by the Government and by the
Council and the other precepting authorities to enable them to set their
Council Taxes.

4.0

Background

4.1

The Local Authorities (Calculation of Business Rates ‘Tax Base’) Regulations
1992 (as amended) require the Borough Council as Billing authority to
calculate the Tax Base for the Borough and the Parishes and to notify the
Major Precepting Authorities (Derbyshire County Council and Derbyshire
Fire Authority), and those Parishes which request it, by 31 January each
year.

Page 15

1

4.2

Section 84 of the Local Government Act 2003 amended the tax setting
regulations so that the business rates tax base calculation no longer has to
be approved by the full Council. The calculation of the tax base is a
procedural matter which, should be delegated to a non-executive
committee. The Council agreed (17 December 2003) to delegate the
function to the Employment and General Committee.

4.3

With the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme from April
2013 there is now a requirement for the Council to formally approve the
Business Rates Tax Base. The approval process must be the same as that
used for the approval of the Council Tax Base. The estimate of the Business
Rates base and yield is included in a return to the Government known as the
NNDR1 return. The NNDR1 return shows how the estimated yield is to be
distributed, including the amount to be retained by the Council.

5.0

NNDR Income Estimates

5.1

The Local Government Finance Act introduced the part-retention of
income from Business Rates from April 2013. The income generated is
currently shared between the Government (50%), the County Council (9%),
the Fire Authority (1%) and the Borough Council (40%)

5.2

The draft Local Government Finance Settlement published in December
2020 set the Council’s tariff at £11,465,704 and the baseline funding level
at £3,373,521 for 2021/22. The Council will receive Revenue Support Grant
of £443,971 in 2021/22.

5.3

The Council must complete and approve a form, known as the NNDR1
Return, which shows how the estimated income has been calculated and
how it is to be shared. The form must then be sent to those entitled to a
share of the income by 31 January 2021.

5.4

The copy of the NNDR1 return for approval is included as Appendix A.
Appendix A is based on the best available information at this point in time
but may have to be revised if further changes are required after this
meeting but prior to submission on 31 January 2021.

5.5

Parts of the NNDR1 form are based on factual data at a given point in time
but officers have been required to make their own estimates about future
events such as new buildings, demolitions and the outcome of appeals,
both new and outstanding. The amount to be retained and paid over to
those entitled to a share of the income will be fixed at the start of the year
based on the estimate on the NNDR1 return so it is important that the
income forecast is not overstated.
2

Page 16

5.6

The NNDR1 return (Appendix A) shows that the estimated net rate yield is
£38.4m (Part 1B, Line 13) and that this will be shared as follows:

19,198
15,358

Fund
(Deficit)
Part 1B Line
23
£000’s
(8,953)
(7,162)

3,455

(1,612)

9%

384

(179)

1%

38,395

(17,906)

100%

Income
Part 1B
Line 13
£000’s

Paid to:

Central Government
Retained by CBC
Derbyshire County
Council
Derbyshire Fire
Authority
Total

Income
Share
2021/22
%
50%
40%

5.7 The amount the General Fund retains in relation to business rates is
detailed below: -

Council’s retained share
Tariff paid to Central Government
Levy paid to the Derbyshire Pool
Grant Income Received (Part 1C Line 33)
Levy and Tariffs adjustment
Retained Business Rates - Renewable Energy
Retained Business Rates

£000’s
15,358
(11,466)
(1,019)
2,421
(597)
47
4,744

5.8 Collection Fund Surplus/Deficit
Billing Authorities are required to calculate the estimated surplus or deficit
on the NNDR element of the Collection Fund each year.
The estimated surplus or deficit must be allocated to the organisations in
the same proportions as income and the major preceptors should then
take this surplus/ (deficit) into account when calculating their Council
Taxes for the following financial year.
The NNDR element of the Collection Fund is estimated to be a deficit of
£17.906m by the 31 March 2021. The table in para. 5.6 shows how the
estimated deficit will be shared, with the Council being charged £7.162m.
In response to the Covid19 pandemic, the Government extended the
business rate relief scheme to 100% for all retail, nursery and local
newspaper reliefs. The extension of the relief was not announced until

Page 17

3

March 2020 and was therefore not included in the NNDR1 form for 20/21
and was not taken into account as part of an authority’s council tax setting
decisions.
As a result, MHCLG allocated 100% of the additional Section 31 grants to
billing authorities in relation to retail, nursery and local newspaper reliefs
in 2020/21 which totalled £17.939m to cover the lost income from those
businesses. This grant will be carried forward into 2021/22 to offset the
£17.906m deficit detailed above, the Councils share is £7.175m and this
will be used to recover the Councils share of the deficit e.g. £7.162m and
the balance will be allocated in the usual proportions to central
government and other major preceptors for them to meet their share of
the deficit. It will therefore have no impact on the General Fund position
for 2021/22.
6.0

Alternative options

6.1

None.

7.0

Implications for consideration – Council Plan

7.1

There are no Council Plan implications to consider in this report.

8.0

Implications for consideration – Financial and value for money

8.1

Financial and value for money implications are detailed in sections 4 to 5.

9.0

Implications for consideration – Legal

9.1

Paragraph 43 Schedule B of the Local Government Finance Act 1988
requires the Council to formally approve details of the provisional
contributions for NNDR each year using the statutory NNDR1 form by 31
January. The form has been completed in accordance with the relevant
regulations.

10.0 Implications for consideration – Human resources
10.1 There are no human resource implications to consider in this report.
11.0 Implications for consideration – Risk management
11.1 The key risks associated with the setting of the tax bases are summarised
in the table below:

4

Page 18

Current
Risk Rating Impact
/ Likelihood

Description of
risk

Business rate
income under/over
estimated

High / Likely

Mitigating Actions

Prudent assumptions are
built into income forecast.
The income will be
monitored during the year.

12.0 Implications for consideration – Community Wellbeing
12.1

There are no community wellbeing implications to consider in this report.

13.0 Implications for consideration – Economy and skills
13.1 There are no economy and skills implications to consider in this report.
14.0 Implications for consideration – Climate Change
14.1 Individual climate change impact assessments are not required for the
budget process. These are included as part of the decision-making
processes for specific spending options.
15.0 Implications for consideration – Equality and diversity
15.1 Individual equality and diversity impact assessments are not required for
the budget process. These are included as part of the decision-making
processes for specific spending options.
Document information
Report author

Contact number/email

Richard Staniforth

01246 936274
richard.staniforth@chesterfield.gov.uk

Background documents
These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material
extent when the report was prepared.
Appendices to the report
Appendix A
NNDR1 Return 2021/22

Page 19

5

This page is intentionally left blank

NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES RETURN
NNDR1 2021-22
Please e-mail to : nndr.statistics@communities.gov.uk
Please enter your details after checking that you have selected the correct authority name
Forms should be returned to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government by Sunday 31 January 2021

All figures should be entered in whole £
Please remember that a copy of this form should also be sent to your relevant Precepting Authorities, and Pool Leads (if
applicable).

These instructions highlight the special features of the form and should be read in conjunction with the
Guidance Notes and Validation notes.
Completing the form
1. The form can be set up for each individual local authority by selecting the appropriate authority name from the list. The
example shows the local authority ZZZZ. Once a local authority name is selected the spreadsheet will automatically complete
the data for the white cells with a blue border.
2. There are three different type of input cells:
* White, Black Border - these are blank for new data - Please ensure all white cells are filled before submitting
the form including entering zeroes where appropriate.
* White background, green border - These cells are information cells and have the appropriate formula in them.
Please do not overwrite the formula.
* White background, blue border - actual data entered by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government into these cells.
The Total column is greened out - there is no need to enter data in any of these cells.
In addition areas of the form are greyed out - especially for those authorities that do not have designated areas. Please do not
enter data in these areas as this will cause delay as we will have to ask you to complete a revised form.
Entering data
3. All values in the form should be entered in whole £. Except for part 1 of the form, receipts (eg sums due to the billing
authority from ratepayers, or central government) should always be entered as positive numbers. Payments from the
authority, or amounts foregone (eg reliefs given to ratepayers) should always be entered as negative numbers.
4. Where possible, you will be prevented from entering data with the wrong sign (+ve when it should be -ve or vice versa).
Updates
v1.1: 2020-21 data in the supplementary validations is fixed

Checking the Validation Sheet
5. Once the form has been completed go to the validation sheet and check if any of the data require any further explanation. The
data are compared with the NNDR1 for 2020-21 and, if the change in number or percentage terms is higher or lower than we
would normally expect, you are asked to provide an explanation for the change in the box provided.
For further details on the types of checks we do see Validation notes for NNDR1 2021-22.
Submitting the Form
6. When the data have been checked and verified please email the complete file to nndr.statistics@communities.gov.uk
7. The form should be sent by your Chief Financial / Section 151 Officer. The email should include the officer’s electronic
signature and the following statement:
I confirm that the entries in this form are the best I can make on the information available to me and amounts are calculated in
accordance with regulations made under Schedule 7B to the Local Government Act 1988. I also confirm that the authority has
acted diligently in relation to the collection of non-domestic rates.
8. A copy of the form must also be sent to your NNDR contact at all your major precepting authorities.
9. If you experience any problems using the form please email
nndr.statistics@communities.gov.uk

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
12.08.20

1

COUNCIL HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 12th August, 2020
Present:Andy Fowler (Chair)
Councillors

Barr
K Falconer
Blank
Ade McCormick Exec. Director
Liz Cook
Housing
Marc Jasinski
Health & Safety
Mgr
Rachel O’Neil
Customers,
Commissioning
and Change
Mick Blythe
Client Officer

Councillors
Dean Epton
Donna Reddish
Ian Waller
Neil Johnson
Karen Knight
Paul Longley
Liam Rich

J Innes
P Niblock
Commercial
Services
Policy & Comms
Health & Wellbeing
Economic Devel.
Unison
Unison
UNITE

*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme
42

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Brittain, Councillor
Caulfield, Tony Devereux, Anthony Radford and Paula Stephens.

43

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 16 JUNE, 2020
The minutes were accepted as a true record.

44

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
There were no matters arising from the minutes.

45

CDM POLICY UPDATE
The Committee was joined by Bronwen MacArthur-Williams, Health &
Safety Manager at Bolsover District Council, Rebecca Hutchinson, Health
& Safety Co-ordinator at Bolsover District Council and Jayne Stokes,
Health & Safety Apprentice at Bolsover District Council.

Page 23

12.08.20

2

The Assistant Director for Health & Wellbeing explained that a task and
finish group had been formed with colleagues from Bolsover District
Council to develop a new Construction and Design Management policy.
The first scoping meeting had already taken place.
At the meeting, the requirements of Chesterfield Borough Council had
been established and the role of the Bolsover District Council would be to
act as a critical friend and ensure corporate compliance. It was
acknowledged that the Bolsover team had good construction experience
that could be shared and that the working group would be beneficial for
both authorities.
The group planned to meet fortnightly and would provide regular updates
to the committee on their progress.
46

COVID-19 HEALTH & SAFETY WORKING ARRANGEMENTS
The Executive Director informed the committee that the next meeting
would be conducted in its original format with reports required from each
service area covering the period 1st August to 31st October 2020.
A general update was provided from the Resources Task and Finish
Group which had an inclusive membership of Trade Union colleagues,
members of the Communications team, and service leads. The group had
been processing the mass of information received from government and
translating the guidance to each area of the Council. Two-weekly bulletins
would be issued to managers and staff, but it was emphasised that
existing risk assessments and health and safety guidance still applied.
An approval process for staff returning to the workplace had been
established and this was the agreed governance for the whole authority.
The Environmental Health Team were leading on any data requests from
the NHS in line with test and trace processes and definitions had been
adopted from the local resilience forum in accordance with the rest of
Derbyshire. It was acknowledged that members of the public were not
required by law to comply with the Test and Trace process, however, the
experience so far had been very positive.
It was noted that all staff were issued with face coverings and that the
council policy on wearing masks was on the website and updated
regularly. Any quarantine measures for staff should be discussed with HR

Page 24

12.08.20

3

to ensure consistency but a pragmatic approach had been developed with
the support of the Trade Unions.
Service specific updates were provided and included the following key
points;
Health and Wellbeing
 All services had continued to operate
 Key services had looked at their environments and rotas and
adapted accordingly, which was working well.
 Very positive work had been carried out to keep the services
running
 Major work had been undertaken to re-open the leisure centres
using both the CBC guidelines and industry recommendations and
excellent customer feedback had been received.
 The cross-council working was highlighted as a positive example of
‘One Council, One Team’
Housing
 Most contractors were back on site and all were following guidelines
 Risk assessments had been carried out for vulnerable staff
 A funding bid was being developed for supported housing to help
the people that were homeless retain the homes they were
allocated during lockdown
 Demands on the tenant participation team had increased,
particularly in relation to anti-social behaviour
 The Neighbourhoods staff had been very flexible throughout and it
was much appreciated
 The Careline staff that were high risk were now back at work
handling calls
 Overall position of Housing was positive. Working to ensure that
people don’t relax as this becomes the new normal
Customers, Commissioning and Change
 ICT team continued agile working. The telephony system had been
upgraded to enable payments to be taken safely from home. Call
recording facilities had been introduced to support performance
management.
 HR had started some face to face interviews. The team was working
hard on the employee assistance programme

Page 25

12.08.20

4

 The Visitors’ Information Centre had opened to staff. It was hoped
that the Museum would open in the autumn with the focus on
creating a positive customer experience.
 The Customer Service Centre was operating well with
approximately 50 visitors a day. There had been communication
challenges with screens and face coverings, but these were being
worked through. Recovery action had recommenced.
 Venture House and Fountain House remain closed
Commercial Services
 The majority of staff had now returned to work
 Most services had resumed apart from major works inside occupied
premises
 All risk assessments were being fine tuned as work resumes and
staff had been reminded that non-COVID related risk assessments
were still in place
 The Market Hall café was due to reopen imminently
 Preparations had already been made for a potential second wave
and the committee was advised that there was confidence that
services would continue with the only exceptions being due to
availability of staff or materials
Economic Development
 The Assistant Director for Customers, Commissioning and Change
and her team were thanked for the work involved in the transfer of
the Kier staff back to the Council. The department would be known
as Property and Technical Services
 The Innovation Centres had resumed managed services with 70%
occupancy levels.
 The Planning Committee continued to meet virtually
 All major regeneration projects had continued, and the Elder Way
public realms work was due to start imminently
 Implementation had begun on the recovery plan
 It was noted that some of the Economic Development teams were in
high demand
 The Building Control Partnership had continued to operate, and
most furloughed staff had returned to work

Page 26

12.08.20

5

Policy and Communications
 Most staff were still working remotely but some tasks needed to be
done from the Town Hall and a rota system was in place
accordingly
 Videos had been produced by the Communications Team to
educate the public for example for leisure services
 Elected members had been encouraged to work from home and
were being updated weekly by an e-bulletin. Member support was
provided virtually.
 Awaiting guidance on hybrid meetings but continuing virtually
 All media interactions done virtually
 Civic activities had been cancelled but work had started on
preparations for Remembrance with other agencies. The format
would be very different to previous years, but it was acknowledged
that it was still important to mark the occasion.
Venues
 The Arts and Venues Manager had worked with the Resources
group to re-open the Pomegranate Theatre as a cinema. Face
coverings were mandatory.
 The plans were to open the theatres for live events in September as
per government guidelines
 It was hoped that Hasland Village Hall and the Assembly Rooms
would re-open in September
Members thanked all staff and union colleagues for everything that had
been done to ensure the safety of staff and public at very short notice.
The committee felt that the council’s services were well prepared for a
second wave and were proud of the attitude of staff.
47

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the committee will take place on Wednesday 21
October, 2020 at 9.30am.

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

11.11.20

1

COUNCIL HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE
Wednesday, 11th November, 2020
Present:Andrew Fowler (Chair)
Councillors

Dean Epton
Ian Waller
Kate Harley
Liz Cook
Karen Knight

Barr
Blank
Brittain
Caulfield
Comm. Services
Health & Wellbeing
HR
Housing
Unison

Councillors

Ade McCormick
Donna Reddish
Gerard Rogers
Marc Jasinski
Neil Johnson
Paul Longley
Tony Devereux

K Falconer
J Innes
P Niblock
Exec Director
Policy & Comms
Monitoring Officer
H&S Advisor
Econ. Devel.
Unison
Unison

*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Rachel O’Neil and Anthony
Radford.

2

CDM POLICY
The Committee was joined by Bronwen MacArthur-Williams, Health &
Safety Manager at Bolsover District Council, Ian Clay, Health & Safety
Advisor (Housing), Rebecca Hutchinson, Health & Safety Co-ordinator at
Bolsover District Council and Jayne Stokes, Health & Safety Apprentice at
Bolsover District Council.
The Health and Safety Adviser presented to the committee a summary of
the work that had been done so far in conjunction with Bolsover District
Council. The principles of Construction Design and Management (CDM)
were highlighted and an outline of the new policy was given. A selection
of flowcharts were shown to the committee demonstrating how to
streamline processes and what to do if more than one contractor is
involved with a project.

Page 29

11.11.20

2

An extract of the CDM register was provided which illustrated its easy to
read format, any gaps in the required information and who was
responsible for each project. Further CDM training for staff members was
discussed with an offer from Bolsover District Council to help facilitate
this.
It was agreed that the documents provided were very useful and concise
and that they should be made available on Aspire for all staff.
The committee expressed thanks to the team from Bolsover District
Council for a fantastic example of collaborative working at pace to create
and adopt this new policy. The hard work of the chair on this project was
also acknowledged.
The Health & Safety Manager from Bolsover District Council thanked the
Chesterfield Borough Council staff for the opportunity to worked together
and noted that they would continue to offer advice and would carry out
spot site visits in the future in order to fulfil a critical friend role.
3

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 12 AUGUST, 2020
The minutes were agreed as a true record.

4

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
There were no matters arising from the minutes.

5

MANAGEMENT TEAM REPORTS
Written reports were submitted by members of the Council’s Corporate
Management and Senior Leadership Teams to update the Committee on
health and safety matters from their service areas during the last quarter.
The reports provided information on workplace inspections, specific
incident investigations, training, communications, and the development
and progress of annual health and safety action plans.
The key points raised from the reports were as follows;
Commercial Services
 The preparations that were underway at the time of the last meeting
in advance of the second wave had been successful

Page 30

11.11.20

3

 The cable strike at Hazlehurst Drive was under investigation
 An amber letter had been issued to Banks and the situation was
being monitored closely.
 Excellent work had been undertaken to digitalise risk assessments
across the service
Economic Growth
 Thanked the resources team for their support throughout the
pandemic and also during their office moves.
 All risk assessments were up to date and being reviewed regularly
 Stress levels in the team were being monitored closely
 Work on the Enterprise Centre was progressing well, regular
inspections were taking place and the contractor was performing to
the required standards
Health & Wellbeing
 It was noted that this report had been prepared when all services
were operational prior to the second national lockdown.
 An unannounced visit to the Healthy Living Centre had taken place
to check that all systems were in place as stated and the findings
were a testament to the staff. The operations were being conducted
in a safe, COVID compliant manner.
 It was acknowledged that the challenge for all services was to
maintain vigilance and to maintain good communication with staff,
especially those working remotely.
 The leisure centres were closed at the time of the meeting until 2nd
December and the time was being used to train staff.
Housing
 The majority of staff were working from home and Fountain House
remained closed.
 External contractor management was going well.
 There had been a focus on training and speaking to all staff in their
one to ones to reiterate this.
 Six investigations had been carried out in the reporting period.
 There was a strong commitment from management to the risk
assessments and reinforcing them in the teams.
Policy & Communications
 There had been some new starters in the team and the health &
safety training had been reinforced as part of the induction process.

Page 31

11.11.20

4

 Specific risk assessments had been carried out for Remembrance
events with the added dimension this year of the COVID-19
pandemic and an increased terrorism threat level. All staff involved
did an excellent job.
 Internal and external communications had played a key role in the
Council’s response to the pandemic and this would continue.
Finance & Resources
 All risk assessments were up to date.
 The teams were largely working from home but where it was
necessary for staff to be in the offices these were COVID secure.
 Conversations were ongoing with union colleagues to review
inspections.
 There would be changes to the inspection processes following the
CMT restructure.

It was re-iterated to the committee that the government guidance
specified that all staff that were able to work remotely should do so.
The Chair thanked the Corporate Health & Safety Advisor for his work on
the new reporting template that was used for this period which it was felt
gave more streamlined information.
6

OCCUPATIONAL ILL HEALTH STATISTICS
The Human Resources Manager presented a report to the committee
detailing the occupational ill health statistics for the period 1st July 2020 to
30th September 2020. It was explained that the number of days lost were
not high for the time of year but may be slightly skewed due to the
number of staff that had been furloughed during the reporting period.
Stress continued to be an issue and it was acknowledged that COVID-19
had impacted the mental health of some staff. Stress risk assessments
had been requested from all managers for their teams and the Mental
Health First Aid programme had been launched. It was hoped that these
measures could be used to improve the wellbeing of all staff.
The numbers of staff that had contracted COVID-19 or had spent time
self-isolating were discussed and it was recognised that these had been
low and therefore the impact on the workforce as a whole had been low.

Page 32

11.11.20

5
7

INCIDENT/ACCIDENT INFORMATION
The Corporate Health and Safety Advisor presented a report to the
committee on the number of incidents/accidents over the period 1st July to
30th September 2020. The number of incidents reported for the period
was significantly lower than for the same time last year due, in some part
to the closure of some services/premises and the COVID-19 restrictions.
There had been three RIDDOR reportable incidents and two COVID-19
related incidents recorded on the SHE system that reported in negative
tests for those involved. It was noted that there had only been four
reported incidents of anti-social behaviour.

8

COVID-19 UPDATE
The Executive Director presented an update to the committee on the
Council’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The committee was
advised that all risk assessments had been reviewed and preparations
made in advance of the second lockdown. The information was available
on Aspire and updated regularly. Individual risk assessments were
underway for members of staff classed as clinically vulnerable.
Managers had been asked to renew all DSE risk assessments and this
was highlighted in the manager’s bulletin. The organisation was
committed to providing any equipment needed by staff to work from home
effectively and this would include delivery where necessary.
The committee was informed that CMT were meeting weekly to manage
the changing situation, react to government guidance and learn lessons
from partners in order to target areas that needed support. There had
been a few cases of non-compliance but the Chief Executive had
addressed this at the Manager’s Seminar and reinforced the message.
This risk had also been added to the corporate risk register.
The Local Resilience Forum and the Science, Technical and Advice Cell
continued to carry out effective work that helped to inform the council’s
decision making. It was confirmed that the council was COVID secure but
committed to continuous learning and improvement.

9

COMMERCIAL SERVICES RPE POLICY

Page 33

11.11.20

6

The Health and Safety Advisor, Commercial Services presented a report
to committee on the Respiratory Protective Equipment Policy. The
committee noted the report.
10

STAFF CAUTION LIST
The Assistant Director for Health & Wellbeing presented a report to the
committee on the Staff Caution List. The committee heard that the Staff
Caution List was an important facility for front line staff and was in need of
some improvement. As part of the ICT improvement programme, it was
identified that the Salesforce system could be used to achieve a more
stream lined process.
The current process involved several interdependent systems, which had
the potential for details to be missed. SalesForce would provide a real
time, less manual alternative with no cost implications as it would be
included in the already established improvement programme budget.
The Monitoring Officer confirmed that moving to the Salesforce system
would ensure that the correct people had access to the right data at the
right time and offer a better method of monitoring the access.
RESOLVED 1. To approve the use of SalesForce for the recording, approval
and viewing of CBCs Staff Caution List.
2. To approve in principle a change to the Staff Caution List
Policy to enable the development of the SalesForce project.
3. To delegate the approval of the new version of the Staff
Caution List Policy to the Joint Chairs of the Health and Safety
Committee

11

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the committee would take place on Wednesday 10th
February 2021 at 9.30am.

Page 34

Agenda Item 7
EMPLOYER/TU 21.09.20

1

EMPLOYER / TRADE UNION COMMITTEE
Monday, 21st September, 2020
Present:Councillor P Gilby(Chair)
Councillor
Andrew Fowler
Kate Harley
Liam Rich

J Innes
Unison
HR
UNITE

Ade McCormick
Maria Slack
Huw Bowen
Helen Fox

Exec Director
Unison
Chief Executive
Chief Accountant

*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme
61

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Amanda Serjeant,
Lesley Waller, Tony Devereux, Paula Stephens and Rob Wilkes.

62

MINUTES
The minutes were accepted as a true record.

63

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
An update was requested on the restructure of the Assistant Director
roles. The Executive Director confirmed that an extended consultation
period had taken place and further discussions were due to take place
later that day. A report would be added to the Forward Plan during the
coming week and consultation with the trade unions and their comments
would be included in the report.

64

BUDGET UPDATE
The Chief Accountant advised the committee that they were now in
receipt of the claim forms for loss of income at the venues. It was hoped
that the size of the claim would be in the region of £2 million which would
reduce the deficit down to approximately £1 million. An application would
also be submitted to the new arts scheme and it was noted that further
funds would possibly be available from the furlough scheme from
January.

Page 35

EMPLOYER/TU 21.09.20

2

The budget update would be presented to Cabinet in October and the first
budget review would be presented to Cabinet in December. The Chief
Accountant added the caveat that these figures were on the basis that
there would not be a second lockdown.
The Chair thanked the Chief Accountant and Deputy Chief Accountant for
their hard work.
65

COVID-19 UPDATE
The Executive Director presented an update to the committee on the
Council’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic. It was explained that as
information was received from government, guidelines and risk
assessments were updated and cascaded throughout the organisation as
appropriate.
The Corporate Management Team had been examining scenarios around
key services should further restrictions be imposed. The Council
continued to encourage staff to work from home wherever possible. The
Resources group had maintained its collaborative working with the trade
unions. Track and Trace systems were in place throughout the council.
Any breaches in COVID compliance within the Council or externally were
being followed up appropriately. The use of face masks would be further
strengthened. There was potential for walk in testing facilities to be
implemented within the Borough.
The focus was on the mental health of staff and resilience of the
organisation as a whole. A guest speaker was booked to attend the
management seminar on the subject and this would be recorded and
made available to all staff.

66

VISION DERBYSHIRE
The Leader of the Council informed the committee of a project that the
Leaders of the District Councils and the County Council in Derbyshire had
been working on for 18 months known as Vision Derbyshire. It was hoped
that this could be viable alternative to local government re-organisation
and its aim was to improve outcomes for all the people of Derbyshire
without structural reform.

Page 36

EMPLOYER/TU 21.09.20

3

The committee heard that there was a desire to improve the job
satisfaction of workers through multi-agency working and to create
efficiencies. The Leaders had written to the Secretary of State to move
the idea forward and were doing their best to prevent any local
government re-organisation in Derbyshire. It was felt that this was the
best way forward. A communications plan was under construction and the
Leader assured the committee that they would be informed of any
changes.
It was acknowledged that the forthcoming white paper from the
government may have an impact on this work but the Leader clarified that
the government was looking to simplify their processes and that one voice
for Derbyshire would help to achieve that. The Corporate Management
Team were working hard alongside the Leader to ensure that the best
result would be achieved for the people of Chesterfield.
67

FLEXI-TIME POLICY
The Human Resources Manager presented a report to the committee on
a temporary change to the flexi-time policy. This was in response to the
need for people to work from home and accurately record their hours of
work.
The trade unions agreed that they were happy with the wording.
RESOLVED –
That the temporary changes to the policy be approved.

68

CHRISTMAS CLOSING 2020-2021
A poll was conducted on Aspire to decide the discretionary day for
Christmas/New Year 2020/21. 55% of respondents expressed a
preference for Thursday 24 December 2020. A proposal was put forward
to accept this as the discretionary day.
RESOLVED –
That the discretionary day be agreed as Thursday 24th December 2020.

Page 37

EMPLOYER/TU 21.09.20

4
69

UPDATE ON THE TOWN CENTRE AND MARKETS PROJECT
The Executive Director confirmed to the committee that a tender had
gone out for designs of the reconfiguration of the market place. The
Council was looking for a consultancy service to prepare options and bids
had been received. The options would be received in February 2021 and
the normal governance process would be followed.

70

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting would take place on Monday 19th October at 9.30am via
Microsoft Teams.

Page 38

EMPLOYER/TU 19.10.20

1

EMPLOYER / TRADE UNION COMMITTEE
Monday, 19th October, 2020
Present:Councillor P Gilby (Chair)
Councillor
Ade McCormick
Kate Harley
Lesley Waller
Paula Stephens

J Innes
Exec. Director
HR
Unison
UNITE

Councillor
Helen Fox
Maria Slack
Tony Devereux

Serjeant
Chief Finance
Officer
Unison
Unison

*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme
71

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Andrew Fowler, Huw Bowen,
Dean Clarke and Liam Rich.

72

MINUTES
The minutes were accepted as a true record.

73

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
The Leader of the Council confirmed that at a meeting of the Full Council
a vote was taken in support of Vision Derbyshire and any developments
would be followed closely and reported back as appropriate.

74

BUDGET UPDATE
The Chief Finance Officer presented an update to the committee on the
budget position of the council. It was advised that the Council had
received an allocation of funding from the government’s Cultural
Recovery Fund in support of the Pomegranate Theatre, Winding Wheel
and Chesterfield Museum.
It was noted that a further funding related to the number of staff that had
been furloughed was available and this could result in a potential

Page 39

EMPLOYER/TU 19.10.20

2

allocation of up to £140,000. An additional tranche of funding was
announced by the government to coincide with the introduction of the tier
system, although the details were not yet available.
A report was due to be taken to a meeting of the Cabinet in November
with an update on the Council’s budget position and this was under
review.
RESOLVED –
That the update be noted.
75

COVID-19 UPDATE
The Executive Director presented to the committee an update on the
Council’s current response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Corporate Management Team had been involved in scenario
planning and since the introduction of the government’s tier system
additional meetings had taken place.
A new plan showing the key considerations of the Resources Group
following the new legislation and revised risk levels was shared with the
committee. Preparations had been made for a potential national lockdown
and/or a move to tier three using lessons learned to date.
RESOLVED –
That the committee note the update.

76

MANDATORY FACILITY TIME RECORDING
The Human Resources Manager reminded the committee that the Council
must regularly submit to the government a record of the amount of time
that union representatives spend carry out their duties. Individuals should
submit this information to the Human Resources team on a monthly basis,
even if it is a nil return.
RESOLVED –

1. That the reminder be noted.

Page 40

EMPLOYER/TU 19.10.20

3

2. That each union communicate to all representatives the process for
recording facility time.
77

LAUNCH OF THE MENTAL HEALTH FIRST AID PROGRAMME
The Human Resources Manager informed the committee that the first
cohort of mental health first aiders had now completed their training. Work
with the communications team was ongoing to create public relations
material and this would tie in with a piece in the managers’ bulletin.
Reinforcement of the availability of the Employee Assistance programme
would take place along with advice to managers to conduct additional
stress risk assessments and refresh the DSE assessments.
The Chair praised the mental health first aid initiative and thanked the
Human Resources Manager for leading on the project.
RESOLVED –
That the report be noted.

78

CASEWORK ESCALATION
The Human Resources Manager reported to the committee that there had
been an increase in case work including grievances and disputes. Stress
issues were more common than usual and it was acknowledged that
there were many challenges faced by staff.
A request was made for additional support from union colleagues to try
and deal with these issues at a local level before they became formal
grievances. It was agreed that the desired outcome would be to do the
best that could be done for employees as quickly as possible to avoid
protracted cases.
RESOLVED –
That the committee acknowledge the request for support and the trade
unions work closely with the Human Resources team in order to resolve
issues efficiently and expediently.

79

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR UPDATE

Page 41

EMPLOYER/TU 19.10.20

4

The Executive Director presented to the committee an update on the
Corporate Management Team (CMT) restructure. A report was scheduled
for the Joint Cabinet and Employment and General Committee and there
was a focus on ensuring that the communication to members of staff was
comprehensive.
It was agreed that the communications would reflect the fact that the
unions were not in agreement with the pay award decision and the next
statement would be a joint one approved by both officers and union
colleagues.
RESOLVED –
That the update be noted.
80

ESCALATED ISSUES FROM THE DJCC
There were no escalated issues.

81

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
The Human Resources Manager advised the committee that the Craft
Worker pay award had been agreed and would be implemented in the
November pay. The details would be circulated to union colleagues
following the meeting.
The Chair noted thanks to all staff, union representatives and members
for working together to keep everyone safe during this time.

82

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting would take place on Monday 16th November at 9.30am
via Microsoft Teams.

Page 42

EMPLOYER/TU 16.11.20

1

EMPLOYER / TRADE UNION COMMITTEE
Monday, 16th November, 2020
Present:Councillor Serjeant (Chair)
Councillors
Ade McCormick
Kate Harley
Lesley Waller

J Innes
Exec. Director
Human Resources
Unison

Huw Bowen
Helen Fox
Maria Slack
Tony
Devereux

Chief Executive
Chief Finance Officer
Unison
Unison

*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme
1

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Tricia Gilby, Andrew
Fowler and Paula Stephens.
As no representatives of UNITE or GMB were present, the meeting was
determined to be inquorate. The notes provided are for information only
and any items requiring decisions were deferred to the next meeting to be
considered by the committee.

2

MINUTES
The minutes were noted and deferred to the next meeting of the
committee for approval.

3

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
There were no matters arising from the minutes.

4

BUDGET UPDATE
The Chief Finance Officer gave a brief overview of the Council’s budget
position and referred to the budget update presented to Cabinet in the
previous week. A budget review was underway with a robust check and
challenge process to maximise any potential savings.

Page 43

EMPLOYER/TU 16.11.20

2

The Chair thanked all the Finance Team for their hard work.
5

COVID 19 UPDATE
The Executive Director gave an update on the Council’s response to the
COVID-19 pandemic and highlighted the following points;
 All premise and service risk assessments had been reviewed and
signed off in light of the most recent national lockdown
 Staff classified as clinically extremely vulnerable were working from
home or remaining at home if that was not possible
 All clinically vulnerable staff had an individual risk assessment
 DSE risk assessments were under way for all staff and
arrangements made for any additional equipment to be supplied
 The Chief Executive had addressed the manager’s seminar and
highlighted the need for continuous learning and an emphasis on
continued compliance
 The Resources group were undertaking scenario planning in order
to be best prepared for post lockdown restrictions
The Human Resources manager gave an update on the number of
confirmed COVID-19 cases and staff isolating at that time.

6

CMT RESTRUCTURE UPDATE
The Executive Director updated the committee on the progress of the
CMT restructure. The changes to the service areas and reporting
structure would come into effect from 1st December and staff had been
briefed accordingly. A meeting to discuss these arrangements with trade
union colleagues had been scheduled. The recruitment process for both
the Finance and the Corporate roles was under way.

7

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
The Executive Director gave an overview of the progress made on
Organisational Development. The importance of the review, in conjunction
with the CMT restructure was highlighted to the committee. Proposals
were being developed that would be shared with the committee in
February 2021.

8

FURLOUGH/AVERAGE PAY

Page 44

EMPLOYER/TU 16.11.20

3

The Human Resources Manager explained to the committee that a report
on the furlough of staff and average pay had been prepared for the
meeting but due to new guidance received regarding the furlough of
venues staff, this was under review. The terms of the recently awarded
arts grant impacted the Council’s ability to furlough some members of
staff. It was advised that the majority of staff furloughed at this time would
be from the leisure services.
The situation was evolving and therefore different options for staff were
being considered including retraining and redeployment. Any furlough
arrangements would be reviewed on a monthly basis.
9

RESOURCELINK DEVELOPMENTS
The Human Resources Manager informed the committee of a project that
had been ongoing to upgrade the Resourcelink software system used by
Human Resources and Payroll. The hosting of the system had been
moved to the cloud and specialist had been recruited to help maximise its
benefits.
A new module had been purchased which would enable leave
management and sickness absences to be carried out digitally increasing
the efficiency of these processes and reducing the potential for human
error.
This work had been carried out as part of the ICT improvement
programme and would also assist in the smooth transition of Arvato staff
members back to the Council. There was potential to introduce further
modules at a later date.
Discussions had taken place with the resources team whose workload
would be impacted by the changes and an additional meeting had been
scheduled to update the staff on the progress.

10

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Concerns were raised by a trade union representative over the workload
of some managers within the organisation and the prolonged pressures
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.

Page 45

EMPLOYER/TU 16.11.20

4

Officers assured the committee that they had been made aware of
capacity issues and that prioritisation was being discussed by SLT to
address immediate and long term needs.
The Chief Executive acknowledged the relentless nature of the
challenges faced by all staff at this time. The intelligence from the trade
unions was welcomed and would be used to help inform the constant
reprioritisation that was taking place in response to ever changing
circumstances.
11

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the committee would take place on Monday 14
December, 2020 at 9.30am.

Page 46

EMPLOYER/TU 14.12.20

1

EMPLOYER / TRADE UNION COMMITTEE
Monday, 14th December, 2020
Present:Councillor P Gilby (Chair)
Councillor
Huw Bowen
Ade McCormick
Tony Devereux
Kate Harley

J Innes
Chief Executive
Exec. Director
Unison
Human Resources

Councillor
Helen Fox
Lesley Waller
Andy Fowler

Serjeant
Chief Finance Officer
Unison
Unison

*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme
12

APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Maria Slack.
As no representatives of UNITE or GMB were present, the meeting was
determined to be inquorate. The notes provided are for information only
and any items requiring decisions were deferred to the next meeting to be
considered by the committee.

13

MINUTES
The minutes were noted and deferred to the next meeting of the
committee for approval.

14

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
The Chief Executive gave an update to the committee on the workload
pressures that were highlighted by trade unions in item 10 of the minutes
of the last meeting. Eight Unison members had submitted comments on
this issue, and it was the Chief Executive’s intention to respond to Unison
in writing. It was noted that the majority of the submissions indicated that
staff felt that the Senior Leadership of the Council had responded soundly
to the increased pressures brought about by the pandemic.
A new Mental Health First Aid Programme had been launched and the
Employee Assistance Programme was in place to help support staff

Page 47

EMPLOYER/TU 14.12.20

2

wellbeing. Redeployment opportunities were being employed in order to
distribute resources to those areas in greatest need. The Council
continued to try and protect its workforce and the Chief Executive
expressed gratitude that this issue had been raised by the Trade Unions.
The Chair thanked the Unions for their ongoing support.
15

BUDGET UPDATE
The Chief Finance Officer gave an overview to the committee of the
current budget position. It was explained that a summary of the budget
position would be presented to the Cabinet the following day. A deficit of
£165,000 was forecast for the year despite maximising all available
funding from central government and savings made due to the closure of
some premises.
A Savings Action Plan had been compiled for the coming year but it was
accepted that there were a number of factors that could bring about
revisions to the plan, such as the impact of COVID-19 on business rates,
or available funding from Central Government. The Chief Finance Officer
indicated that there was still work to be done to fulfil the legal obligation of
providing a balanced budget.

16

COVID-19 UPDATE
The Executive Director updated the committee on the Council’s current
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The organisation remained COVID
secure and quality checks were being carried out in the spirit of
continuous improvement. Key points were outlined as follows;
 The guidance around premises ventilation had been updated in light
of the changing weather conditions.
 Redeployment scenarios had been developed in preparation for
different tier classifications
 The Council was still working closely with the Local Resilience
Forum regarding testing and vaccinations
A meeting with the unions would take place early in the new year to
provide a more detailed update.

17

ARVATO TUPE TRANSFER UPDATE
The Human Resources Manager advised the committee that the final
consultation meeting with Arvato would take place this week and that all
Page 48

EMPLOYER/TU 14.12.20

3

outstanding issues had been resolved. Work was underway on the
induction programme and thanks to the co-operation of unions and staff
the Council was ready to welcome colleagues in January.
Unison noted an increase in membership and commented on the smooth
nature of the process.
18

CMT UPDATE
The Executive Director advised the committee that the new Service
Director structure came into effect 1st December. Donna Reddish had
been confirmed as the new Service Director – Corporate. The recruitment
process for Service Director – Finance had commenced. The transfer of
responsibilities was in progress and as part of the wider organisational
development programme the next tier would be reviewed to ensure
alignment and capacity was correct.

19

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT UPDATE
The Executive Director updated the committee on the Organisational
Development Programme (ODP). The committee heard that the Savings
Action Plan and service restructure would all be drawn into the ODP to
ensure that the Council is clear on its ambitions centred around the seven
themes. A briefing session had been conducted with the senior politicians
and the scrutiny chairs. A key focus was the health and resilience of the
Council’s workforce for the future.
Discussion took place around procurement and where it would fit in the
new structure. It was confirmed that procurement would be a key element
of financial and commercial activities and that a lot of work was being
undertaken in that area. Union representatives were assured that more
communication on this area would be forthcoming.

20

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
It was noted by union colleagues that staff had been asked to complete
stress risk assessments. This was welcomed and a question was asked
regarding whether the results would be used to pinpoint specific areas
where stress was an issue, particularly as a result of additional pressures
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. The Human Resources Manager
agreed to ask managers for feedback.

Page 49

EMPLOYER/TU 14.12.20

4

The Chief Executive explained that managers had been encouraged to
raise any issues and that the senior leadership were meeting weekly and
considering these scenarios. Any intelligence was welcomed in order to
alleviate the pressures wherever possible.
Both Unison representatives and Members expressed pride in CBC’s
response to the pandemic and the way the workforce had handled the
multitude of changes that had been necessary.
The Human Resources Manager assured the committee that the Unions
would be involved in any conversations with the Support Services staff
regarding changes but at that time no formal plan had been established.
21

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting would take place on Monday 11th January 2021 at
9.30am.

Page 50

EMPLOYER/TU 11.01.21

1

EMPLOYER / TRADE UNION COMMITTEE
Monday, 11th January, 2021
Present:Councillor P Gilby (Chair)
Councillor
Huw Bowen
Ade McCormick
Helen Fox
Maria Slack
Tony Devereux

J Innes
Chief Executive
Exec. Director
Chief. Finance
Officer
Unison
Unison

Councillor
Kate Harley
Andrew Fowler
Lesley Waller
Liam Rich
Paula Stephens

Serjeant
HR
Unison
Unison
UNITE
UNITE

*Matters dealt with under the Delegation Scheme
22

APOLOGIES
An apology for absence was received from Karen Knight.

23

MINUTES
The minutes of the meetings that took place on 19th October 2020, 16th November
2020 and 14th December 2020 were accepted as a true record.

24

MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
Discussion took place around craft workers’ pay and their expectation that they would
receive additional pay in this month’s payslip following the NJC pay agreement
confirmed in August 2020.
The committee was advised that the NJC agreement did not apply to red book
workers. However, the senior leadership team were aware that the colleagues
concerned had been receiving average pay for over ten months. The Chief Executive
had requested a paper on this subject, in order to understand the situation in full and
to facilitate wider conversations with the Service Directors, portfolio holders and HR
team. It was agreed that the key priorities were to issue communications to all staff
affected prior to the forthcoming pay date and to set out a timetable of actions.

25

BUDGET UPDATE

Page 51

EMPLOYER/TU 11.01.21

2

The Chief Finance Officer presented an update to the committee on the
budget position of the council. The first draft of the budget was being
refined, particularly in response to the third national lockdown and
assumptions that had been made previously. It was expected that an
update would be ready for circulation at the end of February.
RESOLVED –
That the update be noted.
26

COVID-19 UPDATE
The Executive Director presented to the committee an update on the Council’s current
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The committee heard that the Resources Group
had held an emergency meeting the previous week following the announcement of a
third national lockdown. An e-bulletin was issued to managers highlighting key issues
such as shielding, working from home, childcare difficulties and review of risk
assessments. It was highlighted that all risk assessments should be updated to reflect
the increased likelihood of COVID-19 cases due to the new strain.
The health and safety issues arising from non-essential housing repairs were
considered in detail by the Resources Group and it was decided to pause these.
Emergency and essential repairs would continue and each non-essential case would
be assessed to determine whether, if delayed, things could escalate or cause a health
and safety problem. The capital programme had been ceased, to be reviewed 1 st
April.
A question was asked regarding the supply of self-testing kits to local government
workers and whether these would be supplied to front-line staff. The Executive
Director agreed to obtain more information on this and circulate it to members of the
committee.

RESOLVED –
That the committee note the update
27

ARVATO/TUPE TRANSFER UPDATE
The Human Resources Manager informed the committee that all negotiations
regarding the transfer had been successfully concluded with the help of the trade
unions. Welcome meetings would be conducted with staff during the coming week in
order for the transfer to take effect 18th January.
RESOLVED –
The update was noted

Page 52

EMPLOYER/TU 11.01.21

3
28

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT UPDATE
The Executive Director gave an overview of the progress made on
the Organisational Development Programme. It was advised that proposals would be
shared with the committee in April. The current work being conducted by the Service
Directors identifying any potential changes to structures and resources would be
incorporated into the proposal.
The Leader welcomed the additional time to communicate with stakeholders and
acknowledged that the plan was not focussed on restructure but rather the way the
organisation works as a whole and its culture.
RESOLVED –
The update was noted

29

PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT
Unison colleagues highlighted the need for open communications regarding all issues
in order to maintain strong relationships between the officers and trade unions. It was
noted that the inclusion of an additional representative in the Resources Group had
been very positive.
The Human Resources Manager advised that if there were any specific issues they
were always happy to discuss them. It was noted that there had been increased
dialogue during the last year with officers making considerable efforts to support the
Partnership Agreement.
The Leader of the Council noted this opportunity to strengthen relations and confirmed
that conversations were underway with GMB in order to enable them to attend
meetings.

30

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
The Human Resources Manager informed the committee that there had been lots of
questions from staff regarding furlough options for childcare purposes. It was clarified
that local authorities were only able to furlough staff in incoming generating roles and
that if staff members were performing an essential role then the Council would still
require them to work.
Human Resources had been working closely with managers to support staff that were
struggling with child care and advised that staff should talk to their line managers in
the first instance as it may be possible to authorise dependents leave in the short term
until alternative arrangements can be made.
It was also clarified that, if the child of a member of staff was required to self-isolate,
this was a different circumstance and as previously agreed up to 5 days of
dependents leave could be authorised to assist.

Page 53

EMPLOYER/TU 11.01.21

4

The Chief Executive was asked whether the Winding Wheel would be used as a
vaccination centre and this was confirmed.
31

DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING
The next meeting of the committee would take place on Monday 8 February, 2020 at
9.30pm.

Page 54

